ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 5, 2007
4:13 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Charlie Huggins, Chair
Senator Bert Stedman, Vice Chair
Senator Lyda Green

Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Lesil MGuire

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Bill W el echowski
Senat or Thomas WAgoner

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson
Senat or Joe Thomas

COW TTEE CALENDAR

Regul at ory Conmi ssion of Al aska
Natural Gas Contracts

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REGQ STER

KATE G ARD, Chair

Regul at ory Comm ssion of Al aska (RCA)

Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity & Economi c Devel opnent

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented information on natural gas
contracts and pri cing.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR CHARLIE HUGGE NS called the Senate Resources Standing
Committee neeting to order at 4:12:59 PM Senators Huggins,
Stevens, Stednman, Green, and McGuire were present at the call to
order. Senators Dyson and Thonas were also in attendance. Chair

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- February 5, 2007



Huggins said it wll be an educational session. Cook Inlet
natural gas is the paraneter of interest, he noted.

4:13:39 PM

Overvi ew Regul atory Conmi ssi on of Al aska

KATE G ARD, Chair, Regulatory Comm ssion of Alaska (RCA), said
Tony Price, RCA comm ssioner, was also with her. She w Il speak
to the increases in the price of natural gas in Cook Inlet and
Sout hcentral Alaska and on RCA's recent rejection of Enstar’s
contract with Marathon. “W cone today to talk to you about what
has happened in Cook Inlet that has both contributed to the
increase in costs that your constituents are bearing and our
ultimate decision to reject the Marathon contract.” She said she

will touch upon all gas wusers and suppliers in Cook Inlet
because Enstar contracts touch upon the very issues of supply
and demand. The RCA hearing process is different from

| egi sl ative hearings, she explained. “W take a record and have
experts cone to us, but they' re also cross exam ned by different
parties.” The experts are cross examned by soneone with a
different financial interest, so it is like civil court, she
stated. Conm ssioners also have the ability to ask questions.
The process creates a record that has been subject to scrutiny,
“and that's the record we base our decisions on.”

4:16:47 PM
V. G ARD provided the nanes and Dbackgrounds of t he
commi ssioners of the RCA She said the commssion is highly
accredited.

4:19: 00 PM

IVB. G ARD said t he RCA statutory authority i ncl udes
tel ecommuni cations, oil and gas pipelines, electric utilities,
nat ur al gas utilities, water and waste water utilities,
provisionally certificated utilities, garbage wutilities, and
Power Cost Equalization program adm nistration.

SENATOR DYSON asked which gas pipelines are regul at ed.
M5. GQARD said RCA regulates all gas pipelines in Cook Inlet.

The RCA recently accepted a stipulation on the Cook Inlet gas
gathering system to cone under regulation, “and that neans that

by now we have regulated, | believe, all but one.” She said RCA
will regulate the spur line and intrastate shipnents on oil or
gas pipelines. Inter-unit lines are not regulated by the RCA—

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- February 5, 2007



“those are gathering lines and so we do not regulate those. W
al so regul ate TAPS [ Trans Al aska Pi peline Systen].”

SENATOR DYSON asked if the RCA will regulate any pipelines that
are constructed in the future that will take care of the state’s
royalty share for instate use.

M5. G ARD said the RCA will regulate any intrastate shipnents.

4:20: 58 PM

M5. G ARD said the RCA regulates the contracts that Enstar
negotiates through its tariff sheet 90. The operating rules
require that a base supply contract that increases the average
cost of gas to the consuner will need approval fromthe RCA, and
a contract that will decrease the cost of gas can be put into
effect immediately.

SENATOR GREEN said she has never seen a presentation |ike this.
“And | just want to confirm that we’'re not going to get into
anything that’s going to put us, then, listening to the people
who are before you and retrying this at this comrttee. |I'’mvery
concerned about the agenda.” She said she wll defer to M.
Gard's confort level that the hearing wll not <create a
fl oodgate of the two entities comng in to explain each side.

M5. G ARD said she believes that it is a good idea for the
conmmittee to have any kind of public conversation with Enstar
and Marathon, because it is good public policy. The materials
that she will present are public information and they resulted
from the hearing that RCA held. She said she can’'t prom se that
Enstar, Unocal or Marathon won’'t cone before the commttee.

CHAIR HUGA NS said he prefers not to go through “the bowels of
contract negotiations and all the ramfications.”

4:24:14 PM
M5. G ARD sai d advance approval of contracts is unusual conpared
with other states. Normally a gas utility will engage with a

supplier and then the regulator conmmssion looks at it in
arrears to see if the gas contract was reasonable. She stated
that the RCA has always approved Enstar’s gas contracts in
advance. Enstar’s focus is to secure supply, and that is a
critical point. Enstar does not have a direct inmpact on the
price of the contracts; they secure supply but the price flows

through to the ratepayer. The ratepayers pay all costs
associated with the negotiation, “so they' |l pay the costs of
Enstar engaging in the negotiation; they' Il come to us for

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- February 5, 2007



approval of those costs as well.” She suggested it was sinmlar
to a neighbor finding a vehicle as a favor to soneone. “They're
going to go out and do their best getting you a vehicle, but
they’re going to bring it honme and put it in your driveway..and
you' re going to pay.” To have Enstar have a financial conm tnent
to pay for the gas is sonething that is not done anywhere in the
country, she said. “It’s all flown through.” She added that
sonmeone needs to look to nake sure they are reasonable when
they’'re flow ng through the price to the consuners.

4:26: 27 PM

M5. G ARD said Enstar is very know edgeabl e about the operations
of the Cook Inlet producers, but they don’'t have information
that is not publicly available. Enstar does not have the kind of
information the producers have when negotiating a contract, so
Enstar frequently has been in a challenging position, which has
been described by Richard Barnes who is a fornmer president of
Enstar. She said Enstar frequently feels it doesn’t have contro
over future gas supplies because of the industrial use of these
suppl i es. Enstar presents a ten-year forecast to RCA as
justification for its contracts. It has recently nodified its
proj ecti on because of warm ng weat her.

4:28:09 PM

M5. G ARD said Enstar is not that far off in its projections.
The approval process consists of the contract being filed with
the RCA, which takes public comrent and investigates to see if
the price is reasonable for secure supply. Oher parties wth
financial interest intervene, she said. In the Unocal contract,
Marat hon intervened to oppose it and the attorney general
intervened on the behalf of the ratepayers. She said Tesoro
intervened with Marathon in this contract, and a ratepayer
i ntervened. These parties develop their own case to present to
the RCA. The hearing requires that Enstar neets its burden of
proof of reasonable pricing ternms for the secure supply. Then
the RCA adjudi cates and nakes a final decision. It is a standard
nmet hod for approval of any matter before the RCA. The RCA is
charged with nmaking a balanced decision, and the attorney
general intervenes in the interest of the Al askan ratepayer.

4:30:12 PM

M5. G ARD said she will now discuss Enstar’s current contracts
and the cost of gas to its custoners. Gas prices have increased
by al nost 81 percent over the last three years, she noted.

CHAI R HUGE NS asked if that price was for Cook Inlet and Enstar

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- February 5, 2007



M5. G ARD said it is the gas price for a residential user.
Enstar nakes annual calculations and presents what an average
famly wll pay. A chart showed famly costs of gas over tine. A
fam|ly who paid $854 annually for gas in 2004 will pay $1,547.59
in 2007. This is the reason there have been *“conversations from
your constituents,” she stated.

4:31:41 PM

M5. G ARD said the change in price is from several factors.
Enstar has several different contracts with different pricing
mechani snms, she stated. “They have one contract, APL-4, which is
priced on a base price. In 1988 it had a base price of $1.55
and it was adjusted annually for the last many years based on
the change in the price of oil.” Wen the contract began, the
price of oil was $18, and it recently went over $70. Marathon’s
APL-4 contract has a limter on the price increase, she noted.

4:33: 03 PM

M5. G ARD said the Beluga contract is simlar to the Marathon
contract, but it doesn’t have a limter. The Henry Hub is a
three-year Henry Hub pricing nechanism she said, “which is a
36-nonth trailing average of the Henry Hub's futures contract.”

SENATOR DYSON asked if the difference between the Henry Hub and
prices allowed by the RCAis the transportation cost.

M5. G ARD said, “The price that you receive is a weighted
average price, so these prices are what Unocal paid--$7.98, that
i ncludes transportation and taxes, for the gas that it provides,
the volumes that it provides to Enstar. Beluga is the sane; |
think it provides 3 mllion.” She said they are paid according
to the volunmes they provide and then Enstar does a weighting
calculation and it gets a weighted average price, “and that’s
the $7.02 that your ratepayers are paying this year.”

4:34:14 PM

M5. G ARD said the increase in price is a product of nultiple
factors. Aurora’'s Myquawkie gas was relatively inexpensively-
priced gas, and “these volunes have stopped.” The contract is in
l[itigation because Aurora said it is uneconomic. “The Beluga is
the $6.33 price that you' ve seen, but it’s got pretty small
volunmes.” The Unocal contract has the highest price—+the three-
year Henry Hub--and has exceeded the Marathon contract in
vol une. Ratepayers see such a significant increase in gas prices
because the Henry Hub price is increasing and it is now the main
supplier. As years go by, as the trend continues, the change
won't be as significant, she surm sed.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 5, 2007



4:36:17 PM
M5. G ARD said the pricing nodels have changed.

SENATOR McGU RE asked about the limter boundaries. She asked,
“I'f a conpany enters into a gas contract where that rate is
significantly lower than the Henry Hub for a period of years, is
that sonething that RCA takes into account as opposed to sinply
reflecting on the Henry Hub price?”

M5. G ARD said the Mrathon contract is limted to no higher
than 20 percent to protect the ratepayers from strong junps.

SENATOR MGUI RE said the difference in the Henry Hub price is a
result of hurricane Katrina that didn't affect Alaska. “So does
RCA |ook at Henry Hub price index even if.Enstar or another
conpany supplying gas had a gas contract in place with a set
dollar anobunt that they were getting that gas at that was
significantly lower than the Henry Hub price, is there a
consideration on the part of RCA for that?”

4:39: 36 PM

M5. G ARD showed the conmttee a 36-nmonth Henry Hub chart, which
was provided by Enstar. It showed the inpact of the 2005
hurri canes. She said RCA would not nodify the Henry Hub for
those “acts of god.” She said the contract allows a 36-nonth
trailing calculation, and that is the calculation that went into
effect on January 1, 2000. She said she is not sure of others
having gas available at a lower fixed price. She noted that
Enstar has contracts with big producers, and the only snall
producer was Aurora. Many others would like to provide gas to
Enstar, including Trading Bay. Trading Bay asked the RCA to
allow 10 percent of the gas to be used by smaller utilities. She
said the conm ssion did not address that issue.

4:41: 25 PM
M5. GARD asked if that 1is enough information to answer
constituents.

SENATOR DYSON said he has heard that one reason there has not
been an increase in exploration in Cook Inlet is because of
price. There has been pressure to allow the gas price to float
with the Henry Hub to encourage further devel oprment.

M5. 3 ARD said when Enstar agreed to the contract wth Unocal,

“what Enstar was looking for was a new provider; Mrathon in
1995, and that’s why.the history of Enstar’s negotiations in

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 5, 2007



Cook Inlet is very interesting.” Mrathon had a contract wth
Enstar, and in 1995 Enstar asked Marathon for 400 billion cubic
feet (bcf) of gas--about 17 vyears worth of gas. Enstar’s
presi dent said Marathon told Enstar it was going to sell the gas
to Japan and for Enstar to look for other suppliers. Enstar
anal yzes data of supply and demand when it |ooks for suppliers,
she said. She showed a graph that indicates a decline in
reserves in Cook Inlet. Enstar was told to find another
provider, and it was concerned because it negotiates wthout
much information from the producers; Enstar only knew that
reserves were declining. So Enstar wanted to encourage
exploration, and in order to encourage exploration it said that
it needed to pay prices that were conpetitive with the | ower 48,
Ms. Gard explained. Enstar turned to the |ower 48 narket,
probably with help from the producers it was negotiating wth,
she stated. The producers needed to tell their owners in the
| ower 48 that they could get conpetitive prices, and that was
the genesis for the Henry Hub. The attorney general did not
support the use of the Henry Hub, she said. H's recomrendation
was a well-head price, primarily because the Henry Hub incl udes
transportation and taxes already in the price. “So one of the
reasons we rejected the Marathon contract this tine was because,
again, we said Henry Hub has transportation and taxes included
and we’'re not going to ask Alaska ratepayers to pay over and
above. So, at the tine, the attorney general recomended the
wel | -head price, the U S. average well-head price.”

4. 45: 52 PM

M5. G ARD said the RCA found that Enstar had net its burden of
proof and their case was persuasive, so RCA allowed the contract
to go forward under Henry Hub.

SENATOR DYSON said there was hope that an increased price would
encour age nore devel opnent.

M5. G ARD said the record showed no noticeable increase in the
reserves as a result of the Henry Hub contract. The finding was
based on testinony that said net reserves were still going down.
She said the RCA |looked at if the Henry Hub was the right
market. There is no net increase in reserves, she noted. The
2004 study provides a hypothesis of what drives exploration and
devel opment in Cook Inlet. She said it was interesting that in
the history of supply and demand in Cook Inlet, there were only
three tines when sizeable reserves were added, and one was
substantial: 1.4 trillion cubic feet (tcf). The increases
happened when the LNG export |icense was up for renewal. The RCA

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- February 5, 2007



had to conpare the benefit and detrinment of the Henry Hub, she
sai d.

SENATOR STEDVAN asked if that will happen again during the next
renegoti ation.

4:50: 13 PM

M5. GARD said that is an appropriate question to ask
ConocoPhillips and Marathon. The evidence is that Marathon has
been engaged in exploration and devel opnent activity since 2002.
Marat hon provided, in the confidential record, indications of
reserves; they had to provide that to Enstar, she said. Those
are not questions in RCA's record, and the only information she
can provide to the commttee is information that RCA bases its
decisions on. “That wll provide you with sonme information to
make your own decisions on what the proper market is for the
pricing of Enstar’s natural gas contracts.”

4:51: 07 PM

SENATOR McGUI RE said the concern is the shortage of supply that
is declining significantly. She asked if there is a nessage to
Enstar for future negotiations. She asked what the conpany could
do to negotiate sone gas sale contracts that are going to work.

4:52:23 PM

M5. G ARD said the RCA did not provide specific guidance to
Enstar as to how to price its future contract. They sought
gui dance, but RCA declined to give it to them because RCA needs
to be able to make a decision on whatever Enstar brings forward.
The di ssenting and concurring statenments Wil provi de
information to Enstar, she said. There is nore information that
| eads to why those increases |likely occurred, and there has been
much di scussion on how to determ ne what nmarket benchmarks to
use for Cook Inlet. How does it set prices to attract |ocal
producers to sell to Enstar and the utilities as conpared to
ot her alternatives? She expl ai ned:

Wen you settle down in your own market, and you
understand sone of the drivers of that market, vyou
realize, well, we didn’t lose 400 bcf to Henry Hub;
they didn't take it away from wus. They didn't
negoti ate better than we were able to negotiate. Wat
you find is that the market driver is very much..and
Marat hon’s alternative source of revenue is the export
of LNG so you settle in your own market and you
understand and you |ook at that. Enstar’s ratepayers
can't afford to pay the highest cost of gas that any

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- February 5, 2007



one pays in this market. And as |ong as whatever they
pay is reasonable in relation to what the alternatives
are for this market, then the ratepayers can
understand the connection. What we hear and why one of
the reasons we could not support the Henry Hub
contract, is that there’s really no connection between
the lower 48 Henry Hub and Al aska. There are no
connections. The gas can't go there. The gas goes
across the North Pacific Ocean to Japan.

4:55:01 PM

If Marathon is going to sell gas to an alternative to
the utilities, it’s going to be to the LNG market. So
that, at the end of the day, is the market that Enstar
needs to turn to. And they know that. Ex-president
Barnes knew that. That he had to be conpetitive with
that market or he was going to | ose vol unes.

CHAI R HUGE NS asked about storage of gas and the role of RCA

4:56: 07 PM

M5. G ARD said the RCA does not regulate storage of gas in Cook
Inlet. Storage nay be considered a total system of pipe, and the
RCA has jurisdiction of a total system of pipe. Storage is
regulated in the lower 48, she told the commttee. But RCA has
not exercised jurisdiction over storage facilities in Cook
Inlet. The Unocal contract was presented to the RCA with storage
enbedded in the pricing. She said one of the reasons that the
Unocal contract was attractive was because Unocal was going to
provi de storage to neet Enstar’s w nter needs.

SENATOR DYSON asked if LNG export is a market that is conparable
to Henry Hub prices |ess transportation.

4:57: 38 PM
M5. G ARD said the Japanese contract that ConocoPhillips and
Marat hon have is tied to the world oil prices in Japan. The

prices of LNG delivered from Cook Inlet are available from the
Department of Energy. The prices are the delivered price of Cook
Inlet natural gas converted to LNG and shipped, and there is no
direct relationship between those prices and the Henry Hub.

SENATOR DYSON said the inference is that Enstar has to conpete

wi th what ConocoPhillips and Unocal could sell to the Japanese,
so that market is the default floor of Al aska’s gas narket.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- February 5, 2007



M5. G ARD said only for Marathon and ConocoPhillips, and that is
only through the evidence that was presented by M. Barnes in
the | ast hearing.

4:59: 00 PM

M5. G ARD said constituents can contact the RCA. There is a
wealth of information on Cook Inlet on the Departnent of Energy
website. She said it is helpful to look at Cook Inlet as it
conpares to the Ilower 48. The conparison wll give an
interesting perspective. She noted that the information 1is
accessible to the Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR). She
said the RCA rejected the Marathon contract because it did not
find that the Henry Hub price was reasonable. The contract had a
$15 cap, and she showed a graph of what that would cost an
average famly annually [$2,870.16]. “The world in the |ower 48
woul d need to come apart, hopefully, before gas ever rose to $15
per ncf [mllion cubic feet]; nevertheless, you cannot |ook at a
contract for Alaska that has that price capability conpared to
what the alternatives are for the Al aska market.”

5:01: 03 PM

SENATOR DYSON said it is inportant to know what the proven and
potential reserves are in the area. The inference he derived is
that it is not known, and there are no economc drivers to get
the explorers out there to find out. Before investing in a spur

line or a bullet line, “getting a handle around what are the
potential reserves in Cook Inlet, at what gas price and how | ong
they will last us.all of us need to know.”

5:02: 21 PM

CHAIR HUGG NS said DNR is the lead for getting a gas pipeline
for Alaska; “they also hold the answers to the questions that
Senator Dyson was talking about: the reserves in Cook Inlet.”
Bef ore naki ng huge investnents, he wants a better feel for what
is in Cook Inlet.

M5. G ARD said the RCA position is to comment on materials from
the record. The information from today is really a distillation
of the evidence that’s been filed before it. “I wsh you well in
your task, but our house is a bit smaller than that. W really
are focused on the jurisdictional areas of gas utilities.”

The Senate Resources Standing Conmittee adjourned at 5:03:59 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- February 5, 2007



